
 
 

v1 2015 

AGENDA 
Meeting GLA Oversight Committee 

Date Wednesday 15 May 2019 

Time 2.00 pm 

Place Committee Room 5, City Hall, The 
Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 

Copies of the reports and any attachments may be found at  
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight 
 
Most meetings of the London Assembly and its Committees are webcast live at 
www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts where you can also view past 
meetings. 
 
Members of the Committee 
Len Duvall AM (Chair) 
Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Jennette Arnold OBE AM 
Sian Berry AM 
Tom Copley AM 
Steve O'Connell AM 

Keith Prince AM 
Navin Shah AM 
Peter Whittle AM 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Dr Onkar Sahota AM 

 

A meeting of the Committee has been called by the Chair of the Committee to deal with the business 

listed below.  

Ed Williams, Executive Director of Secretariat 
Tuesday 7 May 2019 

Further Information 
If you have questions, would like further information about the meeting or require special facilities 
please contact: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager; Telephone: 020 7983 4425;  
Email: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458.  
 
For media enquiries please contact Alison Bell, Head of Communications; Telephone: 020 7983 5769; 
Email: alison.bell@london.gov.uk. 
 
If you have any questions about individual items please contact the author whose details are at the 
end of the report.  
 
This meeting will be open to the public, except for where exempt information is being discussed as 
noted on the agenda.  A guide for the press and public on attending and reporting meetings of local 
government bodies, including the use of film, photography, social media and other means is available 
at www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf.  
 
There is access for disabled people, and induction loops are available.  There is limited underground 
parking for orange and blue badge holders, which will be allocated on a first-come first-served basis.  
Please contact Facilities Management on 020 7983 4750 in advance if you require a parking space or 
further information. 

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/webcasts
mailto:alison.bell@london.gov.uk
http://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Openness-in-Meetings.pdf


 

 
Certificate Number: FS 80233 

If you, or someone you know, needs a copy of the agenda, minutes or reports 
in large print or Braille, audio, or in another language, then please call us on 
020 7983 4100 or email assembly.translations@london.gov.uk.   
 

 

mailto:assembly.translations@london.gov.uk


 

3 
 

Agenda 
GLA Oversight Committee 
Wednesday 15 May 2019 
 
 

1 Apologies for Absence and Chair's Announcements  
 
 To receive any apologies for absence and any announcements from the Chair.  

 
 

2 Declarations of Interests (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to: 

 

(a) Note the offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, as disclosable pecuniary interests;  

 

(b)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests 

in specific items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the 

Member(s) regarding withdrawal following such declaration(s); and  

 

(c)  Note the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be 

relevant (including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received 

which are not at the time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register 

of gifts and hospitality, and noting also the advice from the GLA’s 

Monitoring Officer set out at Agenda Item 2) and to note any necessary 

action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s). 
 
 

3 Membership of the Committee  
 
 The Committee is recommended to note the membership and chairing arrangements 

for the Committee, which was agreed at the Annual Meeting on 2 May 2019, as 
follows: 
 
Len Duvall AM (Chair) 
Gareth Bacon AM (Deputy Chairman) 
Jennette Arnold OBE AM 
Sian Berry AM 
Tom Copley AM 
Steve O’Connell AM 
Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM 
Keith Prince AM 
Onkar Sahota AM 
Navin Shah AM 
Peter Whittle AM 
 
 
 



 

4 
 

4 Terms of Reference and Standing Delegations  
 
 The Committee is recommended to note: 

 
(a)  The terms of reference subject to agreement by the Assembly at its Annual 

Meeting on 2 May 2019: 
A.  Staffing 
1.  To respond on behalf of the London Assembly to formal consultation from the 

Chief Officer concerning staff appointments and terms and conditions for 
section 67 (2) employees under the GLA Acts 1999 and 2007. 

 
2.  To receive reports from the Chief Officer. 
 
3.  Noting that it is a joint decision with the Mayor, to make recommendations to 

the London Assembly on appointments to the posts of the three statutory 
officers (Chief Officer, Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer) and 
on the terms and conditions of employment for those posts. 

 
4.  Noting that it is a joint decision with the Mayor, to make recommendations to 

the London Assembly relating to any disciplinary procedures against the 
Authority’s statutory officers in accordance with relevant procedures. 

 
5.  In accordance with agreed protocols and at the request of the Chief Officer, to 

appoint as necessary Members to attend appointment panels as non-voting 
members for relevant staff posts. 

 
6.  To make recommendations to the London Assembly on any other matter 

requiring a joint decision with the Mayor. 
 

B.  Scrutiny 
1.  To approve all scrutiny-related Assembly expenditure and proposals for use of 

rapporteurs, in conformity with the Assembly’s decision-making framework 
procedure. 

 
2.  To scrutinse issues relating to civil contingency arrangements in London. 
 
3.  To scrutinse issues relating to the provision of services to the public (other 

than those falling within the remit of other committees of the Assembly) and 
the performance of utilities in London. 

 
4.  To scrutinize any actions or decisions taken by the Mayor on matters relating 

to education. 
 
C.  General 
1.  To oversee the programming of the Assembly’s business. 
 
2.  To provide a response from the Assembly on consultation in respect of 

electoral issues, arrangements for major events such as People’s Question Time 
and the State of London Debate, consultation on their behalf concerning 
Parliamentary bills and all forms of secondary legislation or guidance and any 
other issue not falling within another committee or sub-committee’s subject 
area and terms of reference. 

 
 



 

5 
 

3.  To deal with and determine any question, issue or other matter not falling 
within the approved subject area and terms of reference of any other 
committee. 

 
4. To vary the approved subject area and terms of reference of the Assembly’s 

other committees and sub-committees, so as to include for future an issue or 
matter not otherwise provided for, in order to facilitate the efficient and 
effective discharge of the Assembly’s business. 

 
5.  To have due regard to the decisions of other committees of the Assembly. 
 
6. To consider and approve a programme of Assembly receptions and events. 
 
D.  Budget 
1.  To recommend to the Mayor a budget proposal for the London Assembly for 

the following financial year. 
 
2.  To allocate the Assembly’s budget and to monitor expenditure on scrutiny 

throughout the year. 
 
3.  To approve, in accordance with GLA policy, all proposed Assembly-related 

budget virements in excess of £25,000 (noting that virements in excess of 
£50,000 will be notified to the Mayor once a decision is taken) and to approve 
all proposed virements between staff and non-staff budgets within the overall 
Secretariat budget (in consultation with the Mayor for relevant proposed 
virements in excess of £50,000). 

 
(b)  The following delegations to the Chairman of the Oversight Committee: 

(i)  The Assembly, on 21 July 2004, resolved: 
 

“That the Chair of the BMAC1, in consultation with the Deputy Chair and Group 
Leaders, be given delegated authority to approve the calling of additional 
meetings if Committees outside the agreed timetable of meetings.” 

  
(ii)  The Business Management and Administration Committee agreed the 

following delegations on 13 December 2007 to the Chair, in consultation with 
the Deputy Chair and party Group spokespeople: 
 
To respond on behalf of the Chief Officer concerning staff terms and 
conditions and changes to the establishment where there is not sufficient time 
to do so at a full Committee meeting. 
 
With the Mayor and on behalf of the London Assembly, to agree arrangements 
for any required disciplinary procedures against the Authority’s statutory 
officers in accordance with relevant procedures where there is not sufficient 
time to do so at a full Committee meeting. 
 
In accordance with agreed protocols and at the request of the Chief Officer 
appoint as necessary Members to attend appointment panels as non-voting 
members for relevant staff posts where there is not time to do so at a full 
Committee meeting. 
 

                                                 
1 The Oversight Committee formerly was known as the Business Management and Administration Committee (BMAC) 



 

6 
 

In accordance with agreed protocols and to appoint as necessary Members to 
attend appointment panels as voting members for the three statutory officers 
where there is not sufficient time to do so at a full Committee meeting. 

 
(iii)  The Business Management and Administration Committee agreed the 

following delegations to the Chair of the Assembly on 23 September 2010: 
 

That authority be delegated to the Chair of the Assembly to hold one event of 
their choice each year, having regards to the event selection criteria, as part of 
the Assembly’s events programme. 

 
 

5 Re-Establishment of Working Groups and Panels (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat  

Contact: Lorena Alcorta; lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4425  
 
The Committee is recommended to: 
 

(a) Consider whether to re-establish the Education Panel as a working group and 

agree its term of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements; 
 

(b) Consider whether to re-establish the Chief Officer Performance Review Panel 

as a working group, and agree its term of reference, size, membership and 

chairing arrangements; 

 

(c) Consider whether to re-establish the Standing Orders Working Group, and 

agree its term of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements; and 

 

(d) Consider whether to re-establish the Devolution Working Group and agree its 

terms of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements. 
 

(e) Consider whether to establish the EU Exit Working Group and agree its terms 
of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements. 

 
 

6 Minutes (Pages 11 - 22) 

 
 The Committee is recommended to confirm the minutes of the meeting of the GLA 

Oversight Committee held on 8 April 2019 to be signed by the Chair as a correct 

record.  
 
 

7 Summary List of Actions (Pages 23 - 30) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Lorena Alcorta; lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4425  
 
The Committee is recommended to note the completed and outstanding actions 

arising from previous meetings of the GLA Oversight Committee. 

mailto:john.barry@london.gov.uk


 

7 
 

 
 

8 Secretariat Quarterly Review, Quarter 4, 2018-19 (Pages 31 - 42) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Anastassia Beliokova; anastassia.beliokova@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4423 
 
The Committee is recommended to note the core Secretariat Quarterly Review for 
the fourth quarter of 2018/19 (January – March 2019). 
 
 

9 Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Pages 43 - 44) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact: Jonathan Baker, jonathan.baker@london.gov.uk, 020 7084 2825 
 

The Committee is recommended to note the action taken by Gareth Bacon AM, 

Chairman of the GLA Oversight Committee during the 2018/19 Assembly year, 

under delegated authority, namely to approve the additional expenditure of £6,650 

for additional work to be carried out by Joanna Chambers MRTPI in supporting 

Assembly Members during the course of the Examination in Public of the London 

Plan, under the process for the approval of urgent consultancy spend. 

 

10 Summons - Garden Bridge Project Documents  
 
 Following the meeting of the Garden Bridge Working Group with Transport for London (TfL) 

on Monday 15 April 2019 it is proposed that the London Assembly resolves to summons the 
documents specified below. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
That the London Assembly, under provisions of Section 61(1)(b), of the Greater 
London Authority 1999 (as amended), requires: 

(a) (i)  Mike Brown, the Commissioner of TfL; 

(ii) Sadiq Khan, the Chair of the TfL Board; and  

(iii) Heidi Alexander, the Deputy Mayor for Transport,  

under section 61(2)(a) and 61(2)(b) of the Greater London Authority Act 

1999 (as amended) to provide the Assembly with the following documents in 

their possession and/or control relating to the Garden Bridge; 

 Briefings and draft briefings; 

 Presentations; 

 E-mail correspondence, including e-mail correspondence held by TfL to 

and from previous employees; 

 Copies of the risk register of the Garden Bridge Trust; 

mailto:anastassia.beliokova@london.gov.uk
mailto:jonathan.baker@london.gov.uk


 

8 
 

 Press releases, statements and communications plans; and 

 Any correspondence with or from organisations with involvement in the 

Garden Bridge project, such as the Independent Investment Programme 

Advisory Group; and 

(b) The following current members of the TfL Board and panels and committees; 

(i)   Sadiq Khan (Chair); 

(ii)  Heidi Alexander (Deputy Chair); 

(iii)  Dr Mee Ling Ng OBE; 

(iv)  Dr Nelson Ogunshakin OBE; 

(v)   Kay Carberry CBE; 

(vi)  Mark Phillips; 

(vii)   Prof Greg Clark CBE; 

(viii)  Val Shawcross CBE; 

(ix)    Bronwen Handyside; 

(x)     Dr Nina Skorupska CBE; 

(xi)    Ron Kalifa OBE; 

(xii)   Dr Lynn Sloman; 

(xiii)  Dr Alice Maynard CBE; 

(xiv)  Ben Story; and 

(xv)   Anne McMeel; 

(c) The following former members of the TfL Board and panels and committees: 

(i)      Boris Johnson MP; 

(ii)     Peter Anderson; 

(iii)    Sir John Armitt; 

(iv)    Sir Brendan Barber; 

(v)     Richard Barnes; 

(vi)    Charles Belcher; 

(vii)   Roger Burnley; 



 

9 
 

(viii)  Brian Cooke; 

(ix)    Baroness Grey-Thompson; 

(x)     Angela Knight; 

(xi)    Michael Liebreich; 

(xii)   Eva Lindholm; 

(xiii)  Daniel Moylan; 

(xiv)  Bob Oddy; 

(xv)   Keith Williams; and 

(xvi)  Steve Wright; 

under section 61(2)(a), 61(2)(b) and 61(2)(c) of the Greater London 

Authority Act 1999 (as amended) to provide the Assembly with all written 

correspondence sent or received related to the Garden Bridge project; 

for which notice will be given in accordance with Section 62 of the Greater London 

Authority Act 1999 (as amended) in due course and with the documents to be 

provided no later than two weeks from the date of the notice requiring these 

documents.  
 
 

11 Work Programme for the GLA Oversight Committee (Pages 45 - 48) 

 
 Report of the Executive Director of Secretariat 

Contact:  Lorena Alcorta; lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; 020 7983 4425 

 

The Committee is recommended to note its work programme for 2019/20 and 

identify any additional issues it wishes to consider at future meetings.  
 
 

12 Date of Next Meeting  
 
 The next meeting of the Committee is scheduled to be held on 25 June 2019 at 10am in 

Committee Room 5, City Hall. 
 
 

13 Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent  
 
 
 

mailto:vishal.seegoolam@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                      

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk  v2/2018 

 

Subject: Declarations of Interests 
 

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 15 May 2019 

 
This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
1.1 This report sets out details of offices held by Assembly Members for noting as disclosable pecuniary 

interests and requires additional relevant declarations relating to disclosable pecuniary interests, and 

gifts and hospitality to be made. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table below, be noted 

as disclosable pecuniary interests1; 

2.2 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any disclosable pecuniary interests in specific 

items listed on the agenda and the necessary action taken by the Member(s) regarding 

withdrawal following such declaration(s) be noted; and 

2.3 That the declaration by any Member(s) of any other interests deemed to be relevant 

(including any interests arising from gifts and hospitality received which are not at the 

time of the meeting reflected on the Authority’s register of gifts and hospitality, and 

noting also the advice from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer set out at below) and any 

necessary action taken by the Member(s) following such declaration(s) be noted. 

 
3. Issues for Consideration  
 
3.1 Relevant offices held by Assembly Members are listed in the table overleaf: 

  

                                                 
1 The Monitoring Officer advises that: Paragraph 10 of the Code of Conduct will only preclude a Member from 
participating in any matter to be considered or being considered at, for example, a meeting of the Assembly, 
where the Member has a direct Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in that particular matter. The effect of this is 
that the ‘matter to be considered, or being considered’ must be about the Member’s interest. So, by way of 
example, if an Assembly Member is also a councillor of London Borough X, that Assembly Member will be 
precluded from participating in an Assembly meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about the 
Member’s role / employment as a councillor of London Borough X; the Member will not be precluded from 
participating in a meeting where the Assembly is to consider a matter about an activity or decision of London 
Borough X. 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



        

Member Interest 

Tony Arbour AM  

Jennette Arnold OBE AM European Committee of the Regions  

Gareth Bacon AM Member, LB Bexley 

Shaun Bailey AM  

Sian Berry AM Member, LB Camden 

Andrew Boff AM Congress of Local and Regional Authorities (Council of 
Europe) 

Leonie Cooper AM Member, LB Wandsworth 

Tom Copley AM Member, LB Lewisham 

Unmesh Desai AM  

Tony Devenish AM Member, City of Westminster 

Andrew Dismore AM  

Len Duvall AM  

Florence Eshalomi AM  

Nicky Gavron AM  

Susan Hall AM Member, LB Harrow 

David Kurten AM  

Joanne McCartney AM Deputy Mayor 

Steve O’Connell AM Member, LB Croydon  

Caroline Pidgeon MBE AM  

Keith Prince AM Alternate Member, European Committee of the Regions 

Caroline Russell AM Member, LB Islington 

Dr Onkar Sahota AM  

Navin Shah AM  

Fiona Twycross AM Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience; Chair of the London 
Local Resilience Forum 

Peter Whittle AM  
 

[Note: LB - London Borough] 
 

3.2 Paragraph 10 of the GLA’s Code of Conduct, which reflects the relevant provisions of the Localism 

Act 2011, provides that:  
 

- where an Assembly Member has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered 
or being considered or at  

 

(i) a meeting of the Assembly and any of its committees or sub-committees; or  
 

(ii) any formal meeting held by the Mayor in connection with the exercise of the Authority’s 
functions  

 

- they must disclose that interest to the meeting (or, if it is a sensitive interest, disclose the fact 
that they have a sensitive interest to the meeting); and  

 

- must not (i) participate, or participate any further, in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; or (ii) participate in any vote, or further vote, taken on the matter at the meeting 

 

UNLESS 
 

- they have obtained a dispensation from the GLA’s Monitoring Officer (in accordance with 
section 2 of the Procedure for registration and declarations of interests, gifts and hospitality – 
Appendix 5 to the Code).    

 

3.3 Failure to comply with the above requirements, without reasonable excuse, is a criminal offence; as is 

knowingly or recklessly providing information about your interests that is false or misleading. 

Page 2



        

3.4 In addition, the Monitoring Officer has advised Assembly Members to continue to apply the test that 

was previously applied to help determine whether a pecuniary / prejudicial interest was arising - 

namely, that Members rely on a reasonable estimation of whether a member of the public, with 

knowledge of the relevant facts, could, with justification, regard the matter as so significant that it 

would be likely to prejudice the Member’s judgement of the public interest.  

3.5 Members should then exercise their judgement as to whether or not, in view of their interests and 

the interests of others close to them, they should participate in any given discussions and/or 

decisions business of within and by the GLA. It remains the responsibility of individual Members to 

make further declarations about their actual or apparent interests at formal meetings noting also 

that a Member’s failure to disclose relevant interest(s) has become a potential criminal offence. 

3.6 Members are also required, where considering a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person 

from whom they have received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 within the 

previous three years or from the date of election to the London Assembly, whichever is the later, to 

disclose the existence and nature of that interest at any meeting of the Authority which they attend 

at which that business is considered.  

3.7 The obligation to declare any gift or hospitality at a meeting is discharged, subject to the proviso set 

out below, by registering gifts and hospitality received on the Authority’s on-line database. The on-

line database may be viewed here:  

https://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/gifts-and-hospitality.  

3.8 If any gift or hospitality received by a Member is not set out on the on-line database at the time of 

the meeting, and under consideration is a matter which relates to or is likely to affect a person from 

whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25, Members 

are asked to disclose these at the meeting, either at the declarations of interest agenda item or when 

the interest becomes apparent.  

3.9 It is for Members to decide, in light of the particular circumstances, whether their receipt of a gift or 

hospitality, could, on a reasonable estimation of a member of the public with knowledge of the 

relevant facts, with justification, be regarded as so significant that it would be likely to prejudice the 

Member’s judgement of the public interest. Where receipt of a gift or hospitality could be so 

regarded, the Member must exercise their judgement as to whether or not, they should participate in 

any given discussions and/or decisions business of within and by the GLA. 

 

4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The legal implications are as set out in the body of this report. 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

E-mail: Lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk 

 

Page 3

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/governance-and-spending/good-governance/gifts-and-hospitality


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 
 

 

Subject: Re-Establishment of Working Groups 
and Panels 
 

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 15 May 2018 

This report will be considered in public  
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report requests the GLA Oversight Committee to consider re-establishing the Standing Orders 

Working Group, the Chief Officer Performance Review Panel, the Education Panel, the  

EU Exit Working Group and the Devolution Working Group. 

 
 
2. Recommendations  
 

2.1 That the Committee considers whether to re-establish the Education Panel as a working 

group and agree its term of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements. 
 

2.2 That the Committee considers whether to re-establish the Chief Officer Performance 

Review Panel, as a working group, and agree its term of reference, size, membership and 

chairing arrangements. 

 

2.3 That the Committee considers whether to re-establish the Standing Orders Working 

Group, and agree its term of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements. 

 

2.4 That the Committee considers whether to re-establish the Devolution Working Group and 

agree its terms of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements. 
 

2.5 That the Committee considers whether to establish the EU Exit Working Group and agree 

its terms of reference, size, membership and chairing arrangements. 
 
 

 

3. Background   
 
3.1 The Annual Meeting of the Assembly on 2 May 2019 established the GLA Oversight Committee as 

an ordinary committee for the period until the next Annual Meeting of the Assembly in May 2020.   

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



        

 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 

Education Panel 

 

4.1 As agreed at the Annual Meeting of 1 May 2013, the GLA Oversight Committee has the 

responsibility of scrutinising the Mayor’s activities in respect of education matters within London. It 

was agreed at the GLA Oversight Committee meeting that to assist in the undertaking of this work a 

working group be established with the following terms of reference. An additional term of reference 

was agreed by the Committee at its meeting on 15 May 2018 in order for preparations for the 

devolution of the Adult Education Budget to be overseen by the Committee: 

 
To keep under review and investigate as appropriate the development and delivery of the Mayor’s 
policies and strategies in relation to education and to report back to the GLA Oversight Committee as 
necessary. 
 
To oversee the activities of the Adult Education Programme Board, which will advise the Mayor on 
matters associated with the devolution of the Adult Education Budget. 

 

4.2 If it is agreed to re-establish the Education Panel as a working group with the same term of 

reference, it is proposed that the Committee agrees the size, appoints Members to the Panel and 

appoints the Chair of the Panel.  

 

4.3 Meetings of the Education Panel are included in the programme of meetings, agreed by the 

Assembly at its Annual Meeting on 2 May 2019 as follows: 

 19 September 2019; 

 6 November 2019; and 

 5 February 2020. 

 

4.4 As the Panel’s first scheduled meeting is on 19 September 2019, subject to this Committee 

appointing the Chair, in consultation with the Party Group Lead Members, it is proposed to delegate 

authority to the Chair to agree the topic, scoping and terms of reference for the Panel’s first scrutiny 

investigation. 

 

Chief Officer Performance Review Panel 

 

4.5 The Head of Paid Service Performance Review Panel (renamed the Chief Officer Review Panel in 

2108) was established by the GLA Oversight Committee as a working group in May 2012 with the 

following term of reference: 

 

To conduct, in conjunction with the Mayor, the performance review process for the Authority’s Head 

of Paid Service, reporting relevant matters requiring formal decision and/or for consideration as 

necessary to the GLA Oversight Committee.  

 

4.6 If it is agreed to re-establish this Panel as a working group, it is proposed that the Panel comprise 

one GLA Conservative Assembly Member, one City Hall Greens Assembly Member, one Labour 

Page 6



        

Assembly Member, one Brexit Alliance Assembly Member, and one ungrouped Member; and that the 

Committee appoints Members; and appoints the Chair of the Panel. 

 

Standing Orders Working Group 

 

4.7 At its meeting on 25 May 2011, the Committee (formerly known as the Business Management and 

Administration Committee) agreed to establish a Standing Orders Working Group, which would only 

meet when necessary.  As from time to time it is necessary to consider revisions to Standing Orders 

where Assembly Members and the Mayor consider that changes to procedure would make meetings 

more effective, the Committee is requested to consider re-establishing the Standing Orders Working 

Group for the 2019/20 Assembly year with the term of reference, as set out below: 

 

 To consider changes to the GLA’s Standing Orders as required and to make recommendations to the 

GLA Oversight Committee. 

 

4.8 If the Committee agrees to re-establish the Standing Orders Working Group, it is requested to agree 

the size, appoint Members and the Chair of the Working Group. 

 

Devolution Working Group 

 

4.9 The Fiscal Devolution Working Group was established by the GLA Oversight Committee in  

December 2013, and subsequently amended by the Committee at its meeting in November 2014 to 

become the Devolution Working Group with the following terms of reference: 

 

To consider London’s case for further devolved services and taxes in the context of developments 

including the Scottish referendum and the devolved model of service provision announced for 

Manchester;  

To progress the case for further devolution to London by developing practical solutions to 

unanswered questions including how additional powers and yield from any localised taxes could work 

in terms of the roles and responsibilities of GLA and London Boroughs; and 

To develop draft position statements for the Assembly’s consideration on issues related to the 

potential further devolution of powers to London Government and any potential changes to 

governance arrangements within London Government and to take the lead in promoting the 

Assembly’s agreed views on these matters. 

 

4.10 If it is agreed to re-establish the Devolution Working Group, it is proposed that the Committee 

agrees the size, appoints Members and the Chair of the Working Group.   

 

 

 

EU Exit Working Group 

 

4.11 At the GLA Oversight Committee meeting on 20 July 2016, the Committee agreed to establish the 

EU Exit Working Group with the following terms of reference: 

 To co-ordinate the work of the London Assembly’s committees in relation to the United 

Kingdom’s vote to leave the European Union; 

Page 7



        

 To lead for the London Assembly in the Government’s negotiations with the European Union to 

help to ensure that London’s voice is heard;  

 To consider the activities and approaches of other devolved administrations and relevant 

bodies across the United Kingdom in relation to the UK’s vote to leave the EU, with a view to 

ensuring any consequential implications arising for London are taken into account; and 

 To make recommendations to the Mayor, Government and any other relevant parties in 

relation to the UK’s vote to leave the EU. 

 

4.12 If it is agreed to re-establish the EU Exit Working Group, it is proposed that the Committee agrees 

the size, appoints Members and the Chair of the Working Group.   

 

4.13 An appendix setting out the party Groups’ nominations to the panels and working groups will be 

tabled at the meeting. 
 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 Section 55(4) of the GLA Act provides the Assembly may: “appoint one or more committees 

(“advisory committees”) to advise it on any matter relating to the discharge of its functions”.  The 

Assembly may delegate its functions (except powers that are exercised jointly with the Mayor) to a 

committee, sub-committee or individual Member of the Assembly (sections 54(1) and 55(1)), but 

not to an advisory committee, which may only advise in accordance with section 55(4). 

 

5.2 The political balance requirements of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and the Local 

Government (Committees and Political Groups) Regulations 1990 apply to any committees and sub 

committees established by the Assembly.  This means that the allocation of seats on committees 

must be proportionate to the number of Members each party Group has on the Assembly as a whole. 

 

5.3 Political proportionality must be applied to every ordinary and advisory committee or sub-committee 

established by the Assembly.  The political balance requirements do not apply to the Standing 

Orders Working Group, the Chief Officer Performance Review Panel, the EU Exit Working Group or 

the Devolution Working Group since it is not proposed that they are established as ordinary sub-

committees, but as working groups under Standing Order 8.5, and in accordance with the principles 

established by R v Warwickshire District Council ex parte Bailey [1999] COD 184. 

 

5.4 As it is proposed that the Standing Orders Working Group, the Chief Officer Performance Review 

Panel, the Education Panel, the Devolution Working Group and the EU Exit Working Group are 

established as working groups they are not subject to access to information rules.   

 

5.5 A working group or panel established under Standing Order 8.5 cannot exercise any function of the 

Assembly or determine any matter, other than to make a recommendation. Standing Order 8.5 also 

stipulates that a member of a working group or panel unable to attend a meeting may request any 

Assembly or co-opted member to attend in their stead. 

 
 
6. Financial Implications 
 

Page 8



        

6.1 There are no financial implications arising from the report. 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: 

An appendix setting out the nominations to the Panels and Working Groups will be tabled at the meeting. 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: 

None 

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

E-mail: Lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 
 

 
 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

MINUTES 
 

Meeting: GLA Oversight Committee 
Date: Monday 8 April 2019 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Committee Room 5, City Hall, The 

Queen's Walk, London, SE1 2AA 
 

Copies of the minutes may be found at http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-

assembly/oversight 

 
Present: 
 
Gareth Bacon AM (Chairman) 
Len Duvall AM (Deputy Chair) 
Sian Berry AM 
Tom Copley AM 
Tony Devenish AM 
Keith Prince AM 
Navin Shah AM 
Fiona Twycross AM 
Peter Whittle AM 
 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence and Chairman's Announcements (Item 1) 

 
1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Jennette Arnold OBE AM, for whom Fiona 

Twycross AM attended as a substitute Member and Steve O’Connell AM, for whom Tony 
Devenish AM attended as a substitute Member. 

 
 
2   Declarations of Interests (Item 2) 

 

2.1 Resolved: 

 

That the list of offices held by Assembly Members, as set out in the table at 

Agenda Item 2, be noted as disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight
http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor-assembly/london-assembly/oversight


Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

 
3   Minutes (Item 3) 

 
3.1 Resolved: 

 
That the minutes of the meeting of the GLA Oversight Committee held on  
19 March 2019 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
 
4   Summary List of Actions (Item 4) 

 
4.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 

 
4.2 Resolved: 

 
That the completed and outstanding actions arising from previous meetings of the 
GLA Oversight Committee be noted. 

 
 
5   Review of Post Regrading Policy (Item 5) 

 

5.1 The Chief Officer introduced the paper and referenced the discussions that the Committee 

had had regarding the regrading of posts in the Human Resources and Organisational 

Development (HR & OD) team. These discussions had in turn prompted a further 

examination of the regrading policy across the Greater London Authority (GLA). 

 

5.2 The Chief Officer drew the attention of the Committee to paragraph 4.13 of the report, 

containing the following emerging recommendations in relation to strengthening the GLA’s 

current practice in relation to regrading: 

 Consideration of the introduction of a business case approach to regrading; 

 Consideration of a panel approach to regrading; and 

 Consideration of a requirement for incumbent post holders to undergo an objective 

assessment to evidence that the key accountabilities of the required role were being 

fulfilled. 

5.3 The Chief Officer detailed a number of other adjustments being considered, that might be 

more of a departure from current policy, but a number of those were tied into the pay and 

grading review currently being considered. 

 

 

 

Page 12



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

5.4 Members asked questions regarding restructuring and regrading of posts running 

independently of each other. The Chief Officer stated that it was her view that a number of 

regrading issues arose from the fact that the pay and grading scheme had not been reviewed 

for 15 years. The reason for the report being considered at the current time was as a result of 

the previous discussion at the Committee concerning the proposed regrading of the three 

Grade 8 posts in HR & OD ahead of a proposed restructure. The report detailed the more 

robust processes that would apply to the regrading of posts that occurred outside of a 

restructure process. 

5.5 Members also asked questions as to whether the current approach to regrading might be 

contributing to the pay and grading inequalities in the GLA. The Chief Officer stated that, 

whilst she had not done a detailed review, it was possible that it was a contributing factor. 

5.6 In response to questions about the composition of the panels that would review the 

regrading of positions the Chief Officer stated that membership of the panels would need to 

be consistent and properly trained. 

5.7 It was requested that a report be brought back to the Committee to provide an update 

regarding the proposed composition of the panels and details of how they were going to 

operate, including how consistency was to be applied across the organisation.  

5.8 Further, it was requested that the financial implication of regrading of posts also be brought 

before the Committee for consideration in advance of decisions being taken, particularly if 

the result was going to be significant additional cost. 

5.9 Resolved: 

 That the three emerging recommendations as detailed in paragraph 5.2 above, be 

endorsed subject to further reports being considered by the Committee regarding 

the composition of the regrading review panels and potential financial implications. 

  

6   Proposed Changes to the GLA Establishment - Human Resources & 
Organisational Development Unit (Item 6) 

 

6.1 The Chief Officer introduced the report and acknowledged the significant concerns of the 

Committee in relation to the re-grading of the three Grade 8 posts to Grade 10 in the  

HR & OD unit and the simultaneous creation of three new Grade 8 posts, as detailed in the 

report that was presented to the January 2019 meeting of the Committee. 

 

6.2 The Chief Officer stated that the original proposal was not presented to the Committee in the 

form in which it should have been, however she stated that the demands on the HR & OD 

team were such that she wanted to proceed with recruitment to the additional Grade 8 posts. 

A substantial restructure of the HR & OD team was being considered as part of the 

transformation programme. 

 

Page 13



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

6.4 Members asked questions regarding whether or not the review and the additional posts 

would result in improvements in service from the HR & OD team, particularly for the London 

Assembly. The Chief Officer stated that more resource was required in the Business Partner 

model in order to manage the volume of work, which should in turn assist with the quality of 

work being delivered. Detailed conversations had been had with relevant staff regarding 

performance issues and it had been made clear that improved performance was required. The 

Chief Officer further stated that improvements in performance would be relatively easy to 

measure. 

 

6.5 Members clarified that their concern was not with the principle of regrading posts but with 

the regrading of posts when it was clear that a restructure was taking place, thereby denying 

the organisation the opportunity to advertise the regraded positions in a competitive way. 

The Chief Officer stated that the tightening of the processes around regrading would ensure 

that the Corporate Management Team would have a greater oversight of regrading proposals 

going forward. 

 

6.6 Members also asked questions regarding the broadcasting of the family friendly policies 

available in the GLA in order to broaden the pool of applicants to positions. The Chief Officer 

stated that details regarding policies were published with all advertisements for posts and 

that there was broader work being done to extend the pool of candidates who applied for 

positions at the GLA in order to improve staff diversity. 
 
6.7 Resolved: 
 
 That the report and subsequent discussion be noted. 

 
 
 

7   Conversion of Fixed Term Posts to Permanent Posts (Item 7) 

 

7.1 The Chief Officer introduced the report. She stated that, following on from the principles 

that were discussed at the GLA Oversight Committee in February 2019, the first 24 posts to 

be reclassified from fixed term to permanent were detailed in the paper. Another list was 

proposed to be presented to the Committee’s meeting in June 2019. 

 

7.2 Members asked questions regarding the omission of a post in the Labour Group office 

despite fulfilling all the necessary criteria for conversion. The Chief Officer stated that she 

was advised that it was a question of timing, and that it was likely that the post would come 

forward for consideration in June 2019. Members highlighted that the posts in the paper that 

were identified for conversion to permanent posts were all Mayoral and corporate posts. 

Assurances were sought from the Chief Officer that the London Assembly would be treated 

in the same way as other parts of the GLA when posts were being considered for conversion 

going forward. 

 

 

Page 14



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

7.3 Members asked for clarification regarding the financial implications of the proposals. The 

Executive Director of Resources stated that fixed term contractual costs were the same as 

permanent contracts. Additional costs would only arise if someone who had not joined the 

pension scheme then opted to join it. For budgeting purposes, an assumption was made that 

all staff would be joining the scheme. The Executive Director undertook to determine 

whether any of the holders of the positions detailed in the paper had not joined the pension 

scheme. 

 

7.4 Senior officers clarified that, due to recent changes in employment law, a member of staff 

that had been with the GLA for four years was entitled to a permanent post. In addition, the 

Chief Officer clarified that, for a post to qualify for conversion, funding needed to be 

available for the next four years. All the positions identified in the paper had funding 

available on that basis. 
 
7.5 Resolved: 
 
 That the report and subsequent discussion be noted. 

 
 
8   London Assembly Work Programme (Item 8) 

 

8.1 The Assistant Director, Scrutiny and Investigations introduced the report and thanked the 

Members and Chairs of the Assembly’s Committees for their contributions to the discussions 

regarding the Assembly’s work programme for May and June 2019/20. Topics for the rest of 

the year were still under discussion. 

 

8.2 The Assistant Director explained that the programme had been developed following detailed 

discussions with Assembly Members and that her role had been to co-ordinate the different 

topics to ensure there were no inadvertent overlaps and to determine where there might be 

potential for joint Committee working and where there might be cross-cutting themes. 
 
8.3 Resolved that: 
 
 The Assembly’s work programme for May and June 2019 be approved. 

 
 
9   London Assembly Work on Grenfell Tower Fire (Item 9) 

 
9.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 

9.2 Members stated that they wished to make clear the intention to consider whether any further 

work was required by the Assembly as a result of Phase 2 of the Inquiry into the Grenfell 

Tower fire. 

 
 

Page 15



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

9.3 Resolved: 
 

(a) That the summary of work carried out in relation to the Grenfell Tower fire 
as set out in the report be noted; 

(b) That the ongoing work to be carried out by Assembly Committees be noted; 
and 

(c) That a watching brief be kept on any further work that might be required by 
the Assembly in Phase 2 of the hearings into the Grenfell Tower fire. 

 
10   Voter Registration Pilot Project (Item 10) 

 
10.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Communities and 

Intelligence. 
 
10.2 Resolved: 
 

(a)   That the GLA’s proposed voter registration project, to be delivered in 

consultation with the London Assembly and the Mayor of London be noted; 

(b)   That the creation of the London Voter Registration Partnership 

underpinning the programme be noted and that it also be noted that the 

GLA would invite representatives from local authorities, the Association of 

Electoral Administrators, the Electoral Commission, schools, colleges and 

universities to form a London Voter Registration Partnership that would 

act as an advisory group to inform and advise the GLA on its voter 

registration activities; and 

(c)   That it be noted there would be further consultations with Lead Members 

regarding details of the pilot project (including those relating to branding 

and communications channels). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

11   Action Taken Under Delegated Authority (Item 11) 

 
11.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 
11.2 Resolved: 
 

(a)   That the recent action taken by the Chairman of the GLA Oversight 

Committee under delegated authority, following consultation with Lead 

Members, namely to agree the engagement of a consultant to support the 

work of the London Assembly’s Health Committee over the period March to 

September 2019, under the process for the approval of urgent consultancy 

spend be noted; and 

(b)   That the recent action taken by the Chairman of the GLA Oversight 

Committee under delegated Authority, following consultation with party 

Group Leaders, to fund the establishment of a Secretariat Internship 

Programme, initially for one year only, aimed at increasing the diversity of 

the Secretariat, be noted. 

 
 
12   Work Programme for the GLA Oversight Committee (Item 12) 

 

12.1 The Committee received the report of the Executive Director of Secretariat. 
 
12.2 Resolved: 
 

That the work programme for 2019/20 be noted. 

 
 
13   Date of Next Meeting (Item 13) 

 
13.1 Subject to confirmation of the London Assembly’s calendar of meetings at the Annual 

Meeting of the London Assembly on 2 May 2019, the next meeting of the GLA Oversight 
Committee was scheduled for Wednesday, 15 May 2019 at 10am in the Committee Room 5, 
City Hall. 

 
 
14   Any Other Business the Chairman Considers Urgent (Item 14) 

 
14.1 In accordance with Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), the 

Chairman agreed to take the following two items as urgent items of business to allow their 
consideration at the earliest possible opportunity. 

 

 
 
 

Page 17



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

   Proposed Restructure of the Corporate Management Team (Item 14a) 

 

14.2 The Chief Officer introduced the report stating that it was her intention to retain a structure 

of five Executive Directors. In addition, she proposed the creation of an additional post of 

Executive Director of Corporate Support to be on a fixed term post for 18 months to provide 

a focus for teams that were currently dispersed across the organisation but that provide 

corporate support. The term of the appointment was designed to provided support to the 

Chief Officer during the implementation phase of the Transformation Programme and the 

period of preparation for the 2020 elections. 

 

14.3 Members raised significant concerns regarding the proposal to move the teams working on 

rough sleeping, supporting Londoners in the private rented sector, and running mobility 

schemes for London’s social tenants to the Learning and Communities directorate. The 

concerns raised were around removing teams that directly related to housing functions from 

the Housing and Land Team, the lack of synergy between that which the Housing and Land 

team undertook and what the Assembly scrutinised, including the apparent inconsistency 

between the proposed restructure and statements by the Deputy Mayor for Housing and 

Residential Development.  

 

14.4 In addition, Members raised issues regarding the consultation process, and whether there had 

been sufficient consultation with the staff in the Housing and Land Directorate. It was 

suggested that it would also be helpful to consult with external stakeholders regarding their 

views about the proposed changes. 

 

14.5 The Chief Officer stated that the overlying principle around the restructure was to establish a 

set of Executive Director roles that were realistic in scope and that would enable them to 

have the capacity to more widely contribute to the Corporate Leadership Team. Specifically, 

in relation to the Housing and Land directorate restructure, the Chief Officer stated that she 

believed it would be helpful to create a directorate that specifically focussed on the more 

vulnerable people in London, who needed support from a number of different areas.  

 

14.6 Further, Members asked whether the GLA’s functional bodies had been consulted regarding 

plans for the Executive Director, Housing and Land to have a more pro-active role in the co-

ordination of building residential units across the GLA Group. It was requested that the Chief 

Officer report back to the Committee with the results of the consultation. The Chief Officer 

stated that she would provide Committee Members with the written response that she had 

received from the Housing and Land directorate. She stated that ordinarily, she would not 

consult externally on an internal restructure but would be content to do so in this instance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

 

14.7 Members also asked questions regarding the additional support proposed for the Deputy 

Mayor for Fire, Resilience and Emergency Planning, including the specific duties of the 

proposed posts. The Chief Officer stated that it was proposed to create a team leadership 

position together with an additional position to provide policy development support. The 

Chairman stated that, having been Chairman of the former London Fire and Emergency 

Planning Authority for some time, he did not believe there was justification for the additional 

posts. In addition, he stated that there did not appear to be long term funding for one of the 

posts. 

 

14.8 The Chief Officer stated that further work was required on the grading of the posts and 

funding implications. Further, she stated that if continuous funding could not be found, the 

post could not be made permanent and that it would be fixed term pending the budget. 

 

14.9 Members agreed that given the concerns expressed, the report should be deferred until the 

next meeting of the GLA Oversight Committee and that it should address in more detail the 

issues regarding the restructure of the Housing and Land Directorate and the funding of 

proposed positions supporting the Deputy Mayor for Fire, Resilience and Emergency 

Planning. 

 

14.10 Members agreed that the Chief Officer could commence with the redesign of the Executive 

Officer roles and the redesign of the support to the Corporate Management Team, but that 

the report would to the Committee should address the concerns raised before any further 

decisions were made, specifically in relation to Housing and Land and should include any 

correspondence between the Chief Officer and the Housing and Land directorate on the 

proposals. 

 

14.11 Resolved: 

 

 That consideration of the paper be deferred until the May 2019 meeting of the GLA 

Oversight Committee. 

 
 
   Proposed Changes to the Scrutiny Team - Chief Officer's Response 

(Item 14b) 

 

14.12 The Chief Officer introduced her response to the Scrutiny Team restructure stating that it was 

her view that structures should not be created in the GLA that resulted in 14 members of 

staff reporting to one manager, and that the span of control proposed in the Scrutiny Team 

restructure was too great.  

 

 

 

 

Page 19



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

14.13 The Chief Officer further stated that, in order to become the exemplary employer the Mayor 

wanted the GLA to be, it was important to focus on the relationships between staff and their 

managers. She acknowledged that the restructure was a difficult one due to the fact that the 

structure of the team had not been reviewed for a significant period of time. 

 

14.14 The Chief Officer stated that it was her professional opinion as Head of Paid Service that, 

after discussions with the Executive Directors of Secretariat and Resources and the Assistant 

Director, Scrutiny and Investigations, that the introduction of an additional Grade 10 post 

was a solution to the issue. She acknowledged that her intervention was occurring late in the 

process and undertook to engage fully in Assembly restructures earlier in the process in the 

future. 

 

14.15 Members raised concerns about the timing of recruitment to the post in the context of 

adding an additional post to the establishment after the budget process for the 2019/20 

financial year had closed. It was stated that, should the GLA proceed with recruitment to the 

additional post, would be consistent with the way similar posts are treated across the Group 

and that funding for the post should be treated as a growth bid. 

 

14.16 The Executive Director of Resources stated that it was part of his role as Chief Financial 

Officer of the GLA to work to resolve the funding issue. He stated that it was a financial 

pressure that should be resolved in the budget process, however he could not provide a 

guarantee regarding funding past April 2020.  

 

14.17 Members voted on whether to approve the proposal. No votes were recorded in favour of the 

proposal and four votes were recorded against the proposal. On this basis the Committee did 

not support the proposal. 

 

14.18 Resolved: 

 

 That the proposal to create an additional role at Grade 10 in the Scrutiny Team on 

the basis set out in the report be not supported. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



Greater London Authority 
GLA Oversight Committee 

Monday 8 April 2019 

 

 
 

15   Close of Meeting  

 
15.1 The meeting closed at 11.45am. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    

Chair  Date 
 
Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager; Telephone: 020 7983 4425; 

Email: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk; Minicom: 020 7983 4458 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22



 

                                                                      

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 
 
 

Subject: Summary List of Actions 
 

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 15 May 2019 

This report will be considered in public  
 

 
1. Summary  

 

1.1 This report updates the Committee on the progress made on actions arising from previous meetings 

of the GLA Oversight Committee.   

 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Committee notes the completed and outstanding actions arising from previous 

meetings of the GLA Oversight Committee. 

 

Actions Arising from the Meeting held on 8 April 2019 
 
Item Topic Action Action By 

 
5 Review of Post Regrading Policy 

 

During the course of the discussion the Chief Officer 

was asked to: 

 Report back to the Committee detailing the 

proposed composition of the panels that will 

consider regrading proposals, how they were 

going to operate and how consistency was to 

be applied across the organisation. 

 Report back to the Committee regarding the 

financial implication of regrading of posts in 

advance of decisions being taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

An additional report 

to be provided to 

the Committee. 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Chief Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



      

Item Topic Action Action By 

 
7 Conversion of Fixed Term Posts to Permanent 

Posts 

 

The Executive Director of Resources undertook to 

determine whether any of the holders of the posts 

detailed in the paper for conversion to permanent 

posts had not joined the pension scheme and what 

the associated financial implications were. 

 

 
 
 
In progress. 

 

 
 
 
Executive 

Director of 

Resources 

 

 

 

Item Topic Action Action By 

 
9 London Assembly Work on Grenfell Tower Fire 

 

The Committee requested that a watching brief be 

kept on any further work that might be required by 

the Assembly in Phase 2 of the hearings into the 

Grenfell Tower Fire. 

 

 
 
In progress. 

 

 

 
 
Assistant 

Director of 

Scrutiny and 

Investigations 

 

 

Item Topic Action Action By 

 
14a Proposed Restructure of the Corporate 

Management Team 

 

The Committee requested that: 

 Consideration of the report be deferred until 

the meeting of 15 May 2019 and that it 

include: 

a) Information regarding consultation with 

the GLA’s functional bodies regarding the 

proposal that the Executive Director of 

Housing and Land have a more pro-active 

role in the co-ordination of building 

residential units across the GLA Group; 

b) The written response from the Housing 

and Land Directorate regarding 

consultation about the restructure; 

c) Information regarding consultation with 

external partners regarding the proposed 

restructure of the Housing and Land 

Directorate; and 

 

 

 
 
 
The paper regarding 

the restructure of 

the Corporate 

Management Team 

to be presented to a 

further meeting of 

the GLA Oversight 

Committee. 

 

 
 
 
Chief Officer 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cont… 

Page 24



      

d) Additional information regarding funding 

for the proposed additional posts to 

support the Deputy Mayor for Fire, 

Resilience and Emergency Planning. 

 
 
Actions Arising from the Meeting held on 30 January 2019 
 
Item Topic Action Action By 

 
5 Question and Answer Session with Mayoral 

Directors 

During the course of the discussion Mr Patrick 

Hennessy undertook to:  

 Provide the most current estimate regarding 

public awareness of the new Ultra-Low 

Emissions Zone (ULEZ) charges; 

 Take up issues regarding the provision of 

further information on Transport for London 

(TfL) signage regarding the ULEZ charges 

with TfL;  

 Take up issues regarding the accuracy of the 

of the vehicle tracker function with TfL; and 

 Provide information regarding expenditure 

on tracking the popularity of the Mayor. 

During the course of the discussion Dr Nick Bowes 

undertook to: 

 Provide details regarding the amount of 

funding provided to the British Fashion 

Council; 

 Provide information regarding Mayoral 

support for fashion designers of black and 

ethnic minority (BAME) heritage; 

 Provide examples of instances where London 

Assembly Committee recommendations have 

been taken up by the Mayor; and 

 Consider scheduling regular meetings with 

London Assembly Committee Chairs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Complete. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Complete. 

 
 
 

 
 

Mayoral Director 

-Communications 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Mayoral 

Director-Policy 

             

 

Page 25



      

Item Topic Action Action By 

 
7 Proposed changes to the GLA establishment – 

Human Resources and Organisational 

Development Unit 

 

During the course of the discussion Members 

requested further information regarding accepted 

practices in the GLA, with regards to the regrading of 

positions and subsequent backfilling. 

 

 
 

 

Complete. 

 

 
 
 

 
Chief 

Officer/Assistant 

Director HR & 

OD 

 

 

 
Actions Arising from the Meeting held on 17 October 2018 
 
Item Topic Action Action By 

 

5 Emergency Services Network (ESN) Update 

The Chairman has written to the Programme Director, 

Emergency Services Mobile Communications 

Programme (ESMCP) requesting: 

 Details of the payback period for the new 

ESN; 

 Details of cost implications, including 

opportunity costs in addition to the 

£1.1billion estimated cost of keeping Airwave 

operational until 2022; and 

 Whether the business plan includes any 

additional costs for particular emergency 

services. 

 

The Chairman will write to the Mayor regarding 

consideration of a suitable mechanism for oversight 

of the roll out of the ESN as a whole, rather than 

agency by agency. 

 
Complete. Attached 

at Appendix 1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
In progress. 

Followed up 

22/2/19 

 
Programme 

Director ESMCP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor of London 

 

 
 
4. Legal Implications 
 

4.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report. 

 
 
5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

 

Page 26



      

 

 

List of appendices to this report:  

Appendix 1 – Correspondence from the ESMC Programme Director to the Chairman 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

Email: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 27

mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28



Gareth Bacon AM 
City Hall 
The Queen’s Walk 
London 
SE1 2AA 

Emergency Services Mobile 
Communications Programme 
Digital Data and Technology 
Home Office,  
3rd Floor Clive House  
70 Petty France 
London 
SW1H 9EX 

13th March 2019 

Dear Gareth, 

Greater London Authority (GLA) Oversight Meeting – 17 October 2018 

Many thanks for your letter of 29 October, and sincere apologies for our late response; it 
appears that your letter got lost in our system and was got to me recently. 

Since October, much progress has been made on the Programme in delivering the revised 
approach. The first mast built by the Home Office has gone live as part of the Extended 
Area Service, the procurement of the air-to-ground device has been launched, and the 
testing of the 4G coverage using the Assure product has commenced. Furthermore, 
Kodiak version 9.0 is now being demonstrated to Users in the United Kingdom over WIFI, 
with the application expected to be launched over 4G later this month. The first product 
with push-to-talk capability, Direct 1.0, remains on track to be delivered later this year. We 
are continuing to work actively with Transport for London and the Metropolitan Police to 
join forces and make the delivery of ESN a success.  

As I mentioned during the session, this revised delivery approach has necessitated a 
refresh of the full business case (FBC), the governance of which is ongoing.  Until that 
process concludes I’m not able to provide firm details on the financial aspects of the 
programme. That said, it is very clear that the Net Present Value (NPV) for continuing with 
the programme remains extremely positive, the current programme has a positive NPV of 
over £2 billion compared with that of continuing with Airwave indefinitely based on a whole 
life cost over the period FY2015/16 to FY2036/37. 

The first year of saving for ESN is expected to be in 2023, once Airwave is shutdown, with 
the payback period starting in financial year 2028/29. This payback period and the NPV is 
predicated as much on the User Organisations decisions at a local level around 
expenditure relating to the ‘non-core’ programme costs as it is to the ‘core’ programme 

Appendix 1

Page 29



 

 

2 

 

delivery costs. As a point of note, the non-core costs have been provided by the User 
Organisations themselves and have been reflected in the updated business case. 
 
Regarding the establishment of a body to co-ordinate the roll out of ESN across London, 
we are keen to see as much coordination as possible and very much welcome the GLA’s 
interest in this area.  You may want to discuss with the ‘The Pan-London ESMCP Group 
(PLEG),’ which is a forum, chaired by John Anthony (john.anthony@london-fire.gov.uk ) 
from the London Fire Brigade, bringing together representatives of all the emergency 
services in London monthly.  Senior representatives from the Programme provide updates 
to the Group, to inform and facilitate their management of plans for adoption and 
deployment of ESN.  
 
I am confident that ESN will be a superior system at a more affordable price than Airwave. 
Alongside the recent extension of the Airwave contract, we have been renegotiating with 
our primary suppliers EE and Motorola to ensure the programme is on a sounding footing 
to succeed. 
 
 
Yours sincerely, 

 
 
Bryan Clark 
Programme Director 
07557 486979  
Bryan.Clark7@homeoffice.gov.uk 
 

Page 30

mailto:john.anthony@london-fire.gov.uk
mailto:Bryan.Clark7@homeoffice.gov.uk


 

                                                                      

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 
 

 

 

 

Subject:  Secretariat Quarterly Review, 
Quarter 4, 2018-19 

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee 
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 
  

Date:  15 May 2019 

This report will be considered in public 
 
 

1 Summary  
 

1.1 This report presents an overview of the work and outputs of the Assembly Secretariat during the 

fourth quarter of 2018-19 (January - March 2019).  The report also highlights evidence of any 

impact of the Assembly’s work with the media, stakeholders and the Mayor, including where the 

Assembly’s recommendations have been accepted and implemented. 

 

1.2 The purpose of the report is to inform the Committee’s role of overseeing the work programme. The 

report is structured to reflect the Committees agreed by the Assembly at its Annual Meeting in 

May 2018.  
      
 

2 Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the core Secretariat quarterly review for the fourth quarter of 
2018-19 (January-March 2019). 

 
 

3 Assembly Committee Updates 
 
Planning Committee 

 

3.1 The Committee’s main priority for much of the last Assembly year, has been the scrutiny of the 

Mayor’s review of the London Plan.  A public consultation version of this document was published 

on 1 December 2017, and the Examination in Public (EiP) commenced in January 2019, with a 

number of public hearings stretching through to May 2019. 

 

3.2 In this quarter, the Planning Committee focussed entirely on representing the Assembly at the EiP.    

Representatives from the Planning Committee attended 28 EiP sessions and also submitted a total of 

34 written responses to different ‘matters’ relating to the Mayor’s planning policy proposals, which 

are listed below, and are available online.  

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



        

 Good Growth; 

 Format, Scope and Content of the Plan; 

 Overall Spatial Development Strategy; 

 Opportunity Areas; 

 Strategic and Local Regeneration; 

 Wider South East and Beyond; 

 Housing Requirement; 

 Housing Strategy; 

 Housing Supply, Strategic Housing and Availability Assessment (SHLAA) and Targets; 

 Small Sites; 

 Affordable Housing; 

 Other Housing Matters;  

 Density; 

 Tall Buildings, Public Realm and Basements; 

 Heritage and Culture; Historic Environment; 

 Creative Industries, Night Time Economy, Public Houses; 

 Land for Industry, Logistics and Services; 

 Low Cost and Affordable Business Space; 

 Green Infrastructure, Open Space and Urban Greening; 

 Biodiversity, Trees, Food Growing and Geodiversity; 

 Sustainable Infrastructure; 

 Waste Reduction and Management including circular economy; 

 Social Infrastructure; 

 Waterways; and 

 Town Centres and Retailing. 

 

Budget and Performance Committee 

 

 3.3 The Budget and Performance Committee continued its scrutiny of the Mayor’s 2019-20 budget 

proposals with meetings with Transport for London (TfL) and the Mayor in January 2019. Meetings 

with the functional bodies and the Mayor culminated in the committee’s Response to the Mayor’s 

Draft Consultation Budget 2019-20. The report included a call for clarity about the impact of a 

potential renewed fares freeze beyond the current Mayoralty, how London can meet its funding 

requirements for Crossrail 2, and the number of police officers that are required amid concerns over 

violent crime and a lack of clarity over the impact of reductions in central government funding. The 

report also highlighted the need to maintain strong affordable house-building growth and the 

importance of the ability to measure and judge the Mayor’s performance.  

 

 

Page 32



        

3.4 This year’s budget sees some of the GLA family still in significant financial trouble, particularly the 

Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) and TfL. The Mayor chose to raise council tax by the maximum 

he could, £24 from £218 to £242, in the Band D council tax rate, to fund additional police officer 

numbers. The budget also marks the start of two huge new building projects at the East Bank in East 

London and at Old Oak and Park Royal in West London. The meetings in January 2019 and the 

report, as well as the earlier functional body meetings in December 2018, informed the Assembly’s 

Mayor’s Question Time session in February 2019 that formally approved the Mayor’s budget.  

 

3.5 In March 2019, the Committee held a session with London & Partners (L&P). The session focussed 

on L&P’s developing performance framework, the new Business Plan and the need for the activities 

for London and Partners to be more transparent. Members asked L&P to justify its use of public 

funding and to demonstrate how it influences businesses’ decisions to invest, or not, in London. The 

Committee made it clear that it was disappointed in the limited attempt by L&P to improve 

transparency calling it “tokenistic” and stating “I am just left with a feeling that if there was a 

mayoral commitment to transparency, then there would be transparency” and “it feels like L&P is 

hiding behind a cloud of transparency” as well concluding that “Given the millions of pounds of 

taxpayers’ money that is going to you (L&P) to deal with, we feel we should be given far more 

transparency”.  
 

Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee 
 

3.6 In March 2019, the Budget Monitoring Sub-Committee investigated the decision making behind 

TfL’s suspension of proactive road maintenance. The Members questioned why TfL had made the 

decision, what the impact has been on road condition and what this meant for vulnerable road users. 

The Committee successful challenged TfL’s often quoted line around blaming the decision on the 

cut in the transport grant funding from Government. TfL claimed “The decision was taken due to the 

Government’s decision to remove our operating grant for TfL”, before admitting that TfL has never 

received a grant from the Government specifically for road maintenance.  
 

Police and Crime Committee 
 

3.7 This quarter the Committee made recommendations to the Mayor on two issues. The first, on mental 

health and policing, followed an examination of the ways in which the MPS supports its officers to 

respond to people with mental health needs, and the role for the Mayor’s Office for Policing and 

Crime (MOPAC) in supporting the MPS’s efforts to meet increasing mental health demand and 

holding it to account for its performance. In a letter to the Mayor, the Committee made 

recommendations that will enable to Mayor to demonstrate to the public that all necessary steps are 

being taken to ensure the MPS adopts best practice in its response to increasing mental health 

demand. This includes, for example, recommendations around training; referrals to mental health 

services; and effective monitoring of the impact of the MPS’s response to mental health. The 

Committee’s letter was covered as the lead story on BBC London that day. The Mayor’s response has 

now been received. 

 

3.8 The Committee also wrote to the Mayor about neighbourhood crimes—such as burglary, robbery 

and theft—following an investigation into his commitment to ensure boroughs prioritise the 

neighbourhood crimes of most concern in their area. Members examined the impact of focusing on 

‘local priorities’ on crime levels, the police and victims. The Committee concluded that the 

effectiveness of local priority setting should be reviewed, as it is not clear what difference it is 

making. Members recommended that the review look at falling victim satisfaction in the MPS’s 

Page 33



        

response to these most commonly-reported crimes; and how wider changes, such as the introduction 

of the crime assessment policy, may be impacting on the success of local priorities. The Committee 

also asked to the Mayor to take specific actions to improve transparency of data, which can be used 

to assess the success of this. The Mayor’s response to the letter was expected in April 2019. 

 
3.9 Members continued to examine issues related to violence through its meetings. At each question 

and answer session the Committee asked questions about the most recent developments related to 

violence in all its forms, including: the possible introduction of armed patrols; the use of the Gangs 

Matrix in tackling violence; and research on the increase in domestic and sexual offending. In 

January, members dedicated a meeting to the issue of Stop and Search, with a specific focus on the 

use of Section 60. Members heard from young people and community organisations about their 

experiences of stop and search and how they would like to see the tactic improved, with a key focus 

on improving trust and engagement between young people and the police. The information 

gathered then fed into a question and answer discussion on Stop and Search and will continue to be 

used as the Committee monitors the response to the rise in violent crime.  

 

3.10 Members wanted to examine the impact of current arrangements for engagement between the 

public and the police, after the Mayor said he would review the MPS’s approach to public 

engagement and after hearing concerns about the operation of Safer Neighbourhood Boards (SNB) 

and Ward Panels. Members met with a group of SNB and Ward Panel representatives to hear about 

their work and the support provided to them by MOPAC and the MPS, discussing issues such as 

public involvement in local community activity, funding for local crime prevention projects and the 

impact of ward panels on how local officers tackle local problems. The issues raised in that discussion 

have been submitted to MOPAC and the MPS for response and will help form part of the 

questioning of MOPAC and the MPS at a future briefing on engagement.  

 

3.11 Members continued their scrutiny of the MPS and MOPAC through their regular question and 

answer sessions. Topics to receive a high level of attention from Londoners and the media, with the 

Chairman regularly asked to speak on relevant issues. Topics debated this quarter, in addition to 

ongoing discussions about violence, include EU Exit; the Met’s PartnershipPlus Scheme; Sanction 

detection rates; and the provision of healthcare in custody.  

 

3.12 As well as contributing to topical debates through the meeting and question and answer process, the 

Committee has responded to critical events, announcements and publications, giving Members a 

greater voice in public debate. Many of the responses have been statements in relation to violence, 

for example on exclusions and violence, knife crime funding, and potential changes to police powers. 

In addition, the Committee continued to involve itself in debates on issues it has previously 

investigated. In March, for example, the Chairman put out a statement on a report by Her Majesty’s 

Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) about Child Protection in the 

MPS. It also put out a statement in response to the final report of Operation Lynemouth, regarding 

electoral fraud. The Deputy Chair also took part in an interview regarding terrorism, following the 

terror attack in New Zealand, drawing on the committee’s previous work around preventing 

extremism.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



        

Transport Committee 
 

3.13 In this quarter, the Transport Committee completed its freight investigation and published a letter to 

the Mayor and TfL on 28 February 2019. The Committee received positive feedback on the letter, 

including a press release from the Freight Transport Association. Shortly after this, TfL published its 

Freight and Servicing Action Plan. The Action Plan contained a number of recommendations from 

the Committee’s letter on freight in London, such as the increase in click and collect facilities at 

stations across TfL’s network. Further, in the Action Plan TfL commit to seeking the safest, cleanest 

and most efficient modes to transport materials for TfL funded projects; the Committee’s letter to 

the Mayor recommended that TfL fully assess the potential for using the river, rail or canals to move 

materials for its projects.  

 

3.14 The Committee concluded its work on the Mayor’s healthy streets approach and published a letter to 

the Mayor on 12 March 2019. The letter made a number of recommendations to the Mayor and TfL 

including that: (1) TfL improve its reporting on healthy streets schemes; (2) the Mayor and TfL 

challenge the boroughs to propose and develop high quality healthy streets schemes; and (3) TfL 

ensure that its healthy streets schemes are of high enough quality to support 2014 Mayoral targets.  

 

3.15 In February 2019, Network Rail and TfL responded to the Committee’s report Broken Rails: a rail 

service fit for passengers, published in November 2018. Network Rail and TfL recognised the need to 

deliver a better and more joined up railway, and indicated they were developing a joint London Rail 

Strategy together. Additionally, Network Rail welcomed the report’s recommendation on applying 

the Healthy Streets Approach to the design and development of stations. They outlined how they 

are working with train operators to better understand passenger priorities and improve access to rail 

travel. Likewise, TfL indicated that they would welcome the opportunity to work with Network Rail 

to embed this approach in the design and management of stations, and their interface with 

surrounding streets and connecting transport services. Lastly, TfL agreed that funding for improved 

accessibility needed to increase and that they will continue to make the case.   

 

3.16 During this quarter, the Committee also completed its investigation into taxi and private hire services 

in London and published a report Raising the Bar: Taxi and Private Hire Services in London on  

27 March 2019. The main conclusion of the report is that the private hire market in London needs to 

adapt to reflect changes in the industry. To achieve this, the report recommends that: (1) the Mayor 

and TfL refresh the taxi action plan to reflect the issues faced by the licensed taxi sector; (2) the 

Mayor and TfL consider “smart alternatives” to a numerical cap, if a decision is made by the Mayor 

to continue to press for powers to cap licence numbers in London; and (3) TfL review the current 

tiered licence fee structure, and consider whether elements of the New York model could be applied 

in London. The report has received widespread attention since its release.  

 

3.17 The Transport Committee continued to examine circumstances around, and implications of, the 

decision to delay the launch of the Elizabeth Line. The Committee received all the documents 

summonsed in December 2018 and January 2019, including e-mail exchanges between TfL and 

Crossrail on weekly briefings to the Mayor. The Committee also held a formal meeting with former 

Crossrail executive and Network Rail on 14 March 2019. The Committee published a report on the 

delay, governance and transparency of Crossrail at the end of April 2019.   
 
 
 

 

Page 35



        

Economy Committee 

3.18 This quarter the Economy Committee completed its investigation on the persistence of the disability 

employment gap in London. As part of the evidence gathering, the Committee held a public meeting 

in January 2019 to explore with expert guests the gap, with a focus on what support is available to 

disabled Londoners in-work or looking for work; and what actions the Mayor can take to support 

better these Londoners. 

3.19 In March 2019, the Committee published online its snapshot report ‘Tackling London’s disability 

employment’ alongside a letter to the Mayor with recommendations. The Committee also published 

an easy read version of the report for those with learning disabilities. The report made five 

recommendations to the Mayor to close the gap in London, including the constitution of a Disability 

Employment Taskforce; the creation of a distinct space on its Growth Hub website offering guidance 

to disabled entrepreneurs; and the requirement for employers to have an action plans to increase 

disability employment to gain accreditation for the Mayor’s planned Good Work Standard. The 

report was well received by stakeholders and the public and led to significant social media activity on 

twitter. The Press release was the most read release during the publication week. 

3.20 In February 2019, the Economy Committee responded to the L&P consultation on Transparency 

Policy. In the letter, the Committee noted that the consultation was a step in the right direction 

given the London Assembly’s long-standing concerns about the lack of transparency at L&P and 

made many practical recommendations to increase L&P’s transparency.  

3.21 Also in February 2019, the Committee received a response from the Mayor to the letter  

‘Self-Employed Londoners – Managing Finances Under Universal Credit’ where the Committee 

pressed the Mayor on his commitments to undertake research to better evidence the impact of the 

reform on Londoners. In his response, the Mayor stated that he will be publishing over the next few 

months the findings of two projects that will evidence the problems faced by different groups with 

Universal Credit.   

 

3.22 In March 2019, the Economy Committee hosted a public roundtable with representatives of the 

private hire industry to discuss the economic survival of small minicab operators in London; and 

establish ways that the Mayor can support small minicab operators to survive in London. The 

roundtable was co-ordinated with the help of the London Private Hire Vehicle Association.  

 
Housing Committee 
 

3.23 The Housing Committee has used a number of its winter 2018-19 meeting slots for an investigation 

into temporary accommodation and welfare reform.  Numbers of London households in temporary 

accommodation have grown by 50 per cent in the past five years.  Borough councils, particularly 

those in Inner London, are struggling to find affordable temporary accommodation for their 

residents, and providers report rising rent arrears, associated in part with welfare reforms.  The 

Housing Committee sought to establish why more people are in temporary accommodation, what 

impact this is having on households, and to assess possible long-term solutions.  Informal meetings 

with housing solicitors (November 2018) and people experiencing temporary accommodation 

(December 2018), as well as a meeting with GLA Peer Outreach Workers (on the experiences of 

young people facing homelessness) fed into the formal meeting in January 2019.  Housing providers 

and the Residential Landlords Association explained the challenges they face and the ways in which 

Page 36



        

they have changed their practices in order to deal with them, including measures to prevent the 

build-up of rent arrears.  The Department for Work and Pensions also discussed cross-governmental 

working to align housing benefit policy and practice and reduce homelessness.  Solutions include 

innovative pan-London projects receiving Mayoral and UK Government support (Place and Capital 

Letters), as well as GLA investment in the Real Lettings Property Fund.  A report will be published in 

April 2019. 

 
3.24 Transport for London is a significant London landowner.  It intends to use its land to develop new 

homes, both to generate new income streams and to support the Mayor’s targets for affordable 

home delivery.  Its target was for 10,000 home starts, initially by 2020, and now by 2021.  In 2016-

17, the committee investigated the use of TfL land to develop homes, publishing its report, Homes 

Down the Track, in June 2017.  Our recommendations included much closer collaboration with the 

boroughs to align development objectives on adjoining land, a more rapid approach to procurement 

to speed up delivery, and better use of smaller land parcels to harness the capacity of smaller and 

community builders.  The Committee held an update meeting on progress towards the target in 

March 2019.  We noted that our 2017 assessment, that TfL was very unlikely to meet its target, was 

correct – only around 1,000 homes are now actually likely to start by 2020.  Achieving 10,000 starts 

by 2021 is also looking ambitious, though the Committee was pleased to hear of progress on its 

small sites and developer’s recommendations, and that TfL will now be developing Build to Rent 

properties, in partnership with others, to speed up delivery.  The meeting was covered in Property 

Week. 

 
3.25 In December 2018, the Government launched a consultation on whether or not to mandate that new 

housing developments must achieve a biodiversity net gain.  Leonie Cooper AM undertook a 

rapporteurship on exactly this topic for the Housing Committee in late 2016, publishing her report, 

At Home with Nature, in January 2017.  Her main recommendation was that the Mayor amend the 

London Plan to ensure biodiversity is enhanced and created, not just protected – a recommendation 

he has since taken up.  We used the report as the basis for a full response to the consultation, which 

was submitted in February 2019.  We await the Government’s further proposals. 

 

3.26 We continue to follow up our work on Property Guardians.  The Chair and Housing Scrutiny Manager 

attended a meeting with Baroness Olly Grender in mid-March 2019 to discuss how to take this 

forward in the House of Lords. 

 
Regeneration Committee 
 

3.27 On 31 January 2019, the Regeneration Committee held a meeting on the delivery of the Housing 

Zones programme and progress made so far. The meeting heard from GLA officers and Housing 

Zone stakeholders. The Committee requested the Housing & Land officers provide some further data 

so that the better assessment about the progress can be made. A report on the Housing Zones 

investigation will be published imminently.  

 

3.28 In the 8 March 2019 meeting, the Committee heard from Debbie Jackson, the interim Executive 

Director of Development, Enterprise and Environment about the GLA Regeneration Team’s work 

programme and its delivery.  

 
  
 
 

Page 37



        

Health Committee 

3.29 In March 2019, the Committee concluded its investigation into organ donation within Black and 

Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities in London, with an evening gala at City Hall to celebrate the 

work of community organisers and campaigners encouraging organ donation, and to raise awareness 

of the need for more BAME donors. A key event in the investigation was January’s large stakeholder 

event at City Hall where families, community organisations and health professionals share their 

stories and experiences with organ donation. The committee’s report, THE HEART OF THE ISSUE, 

brought together these public testimonies and the results of the committee’s #BAMEdonor 

attitudinal survey, and called on the Mayor, faith leaders and the government to do more to 

encourage organ donation in BAME communities. 

3.30 In March 2019, the Committee set its sights on Child Dental Health in London. The Mayor has 

recognised children’s dental health as a specific health inequalities issue in London, and tooth decay 

rates vary wildly across different parts of London. The meeting included testimony from a range of 

experts in the dental world, and the topic was the top story on the Evening Standard Health pages 

that night. This meeting, alongside a Call for Evidence and a Talk London thread, will be used to 

form the Committee’s output in April 2019.   

3.31 In November 2018, the Health Committee held a committee meeting on the topic on Social 

Prescribing. Following this meeting, on 14 March 2019 (Social Prescribing Day), a video, 

consultation response to the Mayor and report were launched by the Committee. 

 
Environment Committee 
 

3.32 During the quarter, the Committee published outputs from its 2018 investigation of the 

environmental impacts of aviation. In January 2019 a report on aircraft noise called for measures to 

reduce the impact of on residents and reiterated the Assembly’s opposition to Heathrow expansion, 

and gained significant media coverage and social media profile. In February 2019, the main points of 

this report were put to Heathrow Airport in response to its consultation on airspace management 

and plans to increase flights.  

 

3.33 The Committee also published outputs from investigations into carbon emissions. In February 2019, 

the Committee published a report on cold and damp homes, calling for adequate ventilation 

standards in home design and in refurbishment programmes for cold homes. It also emphasised the 

need for the right advice to residents and landlords. The publication gained good broadcast and 

local media coverage, and a response is expected. In January, a report on ‘embodied carbon’ in 

buildings—the emissions from building materials and construction processes—called for strong 

standards in the next revision London Plan, and guidance for developers on reducing embodied 

carbon. A response from the Mayor in March committed to issuing guidance and suggested that the 

Homes for Londoners Board would consider what embodied carbon measures can be made an 

expectation of housing associations receiving funding.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



        

3.34 The Committee’s January 2019 meeting focussed on particulate air pollution, hearing from the GLA 

on emissions from road traffic and solid fuel burning. The meeting followed release of a report on 

the health hazards from high levels of respirable dust on the Tube, and questions on this were 

referred to Transport for London. The Committee has therefore written to TfL requesting 

information; a response is expected and there may be further scrutiny.  

 

3.35 The Committee’s final formal meeting of the year was with the Deputy Mayor for Environment and 

Energy. The Committee held the Deputy Mayor to account on issues including stagnating recycling 

rates, whether to bring forward zero carbon targets, the Ultra Low Emissions Zone, and greening 

London. 

 

 
Fire, Resilience and Emergency Planning Committee 
 

3.36 The Fire, Resilience and Emergency Planning Committee continued its scrutiny of the London Fire 

Commissioner (LFC) and Deputy Mayor for Fire and Resilience (DMFR) through its regular question 

and answer session. The LFC and Deputy Mayor appeared in front of the Committee in January 

2019. Members raised questions around fire fatalities, primary fires and prevention activities, 

including targeting vulnerable people through Home Fire Safety Visits and the LFB’s LIFE, Junior 

Firesetters and cadet programmes. The Committee also discussed call handling, the increase in days 

lost to sickness across the Brigade, and the measures in place to support its staff.  

 

3.37 Members continued their questioning of the LFC and DMFR on the Grenfell Tower fire. The 

Committee focussed on the work of the Grenfell Tower Inquiry Review Team going forward and the 

changes made to operational and control room policy and procedures. The LFC provided an update 

on the procurement of equipment, including extended ariels, command units, breathing apparatus, 

radio equipment and drones. The impact of the skills gap in the fire and building safety sectors and 

implementation of the Hackitt Review were also discussed.   

 

3.38 In March 2019, the Committee focussed on emergency services collaboration. It spoke to a range of 

guests, including the LFB, MPS, London Ambulance Service, the Emergency Services Collaboration 

Working Group and representatives from Durham and Darlington Fire and Rescue Service. Discussion 

focussed on the duty to collaborate and what can be gained from the emergency services working 

together. Challenges and barriers to collaboration were also explored, alongside the immediate 

priorities and next steps for working together and the ways in which the Mayor can support 

emergency service collaboration in London.  

 
EU Exit Working Group 
 

3.39 The Assembly’s EU Exit Working Group continued its work on assessing London’s preparedness for a 

no-deal Brexit. In February 2019 meetings were held with the Deputy Mayor for Fire, Resilience and 

Emergency Planning, Fiona Twycross and the Head of London Resilience, John Hetherington. Senior 

representatives from the NHS also attended the meeting to brief Assembly Members on the 

preparations that the NHS, both national and regional, were putting in place to ensure the effective 

supply of medicines, vaccines and medical and non-medical supplies. 

 

 

Page 39



        

3.40 The Working Group was also briefed by Jamie Izzard, Senior Manager, London Enterprise Action 

Partnership, on the support being given to London’s businesses.      

 

Education Panel 
 

3.41 In January 2019, the Education Panel discussed the GLA’s readiness to deliver the Adult Education 

Budget (AEB) from 1 August 2019 with Jules Pipe CBE, Deputy Mayor for Planning, Regeneration 

and Skills. The Panel was told that everything was on track and discussed future plans to shift to 

outcomes base commissioning so that the AEB will be maximised to meet the needs of Londoners 

and London’s economy. Member sought clarity over staffing costs, out of London providers and the 

consultation process on the new commissioning model. 

  

3.42 The Panel welcomed the Mayor’s action on it’s recommendation to explore the development of 

supported internship schemes across the GLA group. The GLA’s Diversity and Inclusion Management 

Board will be exploring how the GLA can get involved in TfL's existing 'Steps into Work' scheme, 

which aims to help young people with mild to moderate learning difficulties and those on the autism 

spectrum into work.  

  

3.43 The Chair of the Police and Crime Committee drew on findings from the Education Panel’s work on 

school exclusions in a statement on the links between youth crime and exclusion. 

 

 

4. Meetings of the full Assembly 
 

4.1 The Assembly meets ten times every year to question the Mayor publicly on behalf of the electorate. 

There were three Mayor’s Question Time meetings in the fourth quarter of 2018-19, held on  

17 January 2019, 25 February 2019 (that considered the Mayor’s final budget) and 21 March 2019. 

 

4.2 There were two Plenary meeting of the Assembly in the fourth quarter. On 25 January 2019 the 

Assembly held a question and answer session with the Mayor regarding his Draft Consolidated 

Budget for 2019/20. On 7 February 2019, the Assembly held a question and answer session with the 

Mayor and the Commissioner for Transport regarding issues associated with TfL. 

 

 

5. GLA Oversight Committee 
 

5.1 At its meeting on 30 January 2019, the Committee asked questions of Patrick Hennessy, Mayoral 

Director of Communications, and Nick Bowes, Mayoral Director of Policy, about their respective 

roles in the Mayor’s office. It also considered the Chief Officer’s Transformation Programme which 

set out the new Chief Officer’s early priorities related to key workforce issues, amongst other 

staffing related papers. 

 

5.2 At its meetings of 27 February and 19 March 2019, the Committee considered a number of staffing 

proposals. 

 

 

 

 

Page 40



        

6. Events 
 
6.1 On 7 March 2019, the Deputy Chair of the Assembly hosted an International Women’s Day event in 

London’s Living Room.  

 

6.2 On 13 March 2019, the Chairman held his annual event to celebrate the River Thames. 

 

6.2 On 18 March the 2019, the Health Committee held a BAME Donor Gala. 
 
 

7.       Legal Implications 
 
7.1        The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in this report.  
 
 

8.  Financial Implications 
 
8.1       There are no financial implications to the GLA arising from this report. 

 
 
 

 
List of appendices to this report:  
None. 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 
 

Contact Officer: Anastassia Beliakova, Assistant Director, Scrutiny and Investigation  
Telephone: 020 7983 4423 
Email: anastassia.beliakova@london.gov.uk  

 

Page 41

mailto:anastassia.beliakova@london.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



 

                                                                    

City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Action Taken Under Delegated 
Authority 
 

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee  
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 15 May 2019 
 

This report will be considered in public 
 
 
 
1. Summary  

 
 
1.1 This report sets out recent action taken by the Chairman of the GLA Oversight Committee under 

delegated authority. 
 
 
2. Recommendation 
 

2.1 That the Committee notes the action taken by Gareth Bacon AM, the Chairman of the GLA 

Oversight Committee during the 2018/19 Assembly year, under delegated authority, 

namely to approve the additional expenditure of £6,650 for additional work to be carried 

out by Joanna Chambers MRTPI in supporting Assembly Members during the course of 

the Examination in Public of the London Plan, under the process for the approval of 

urgent consultancy spend. 

 

3. Background 
 

3.1 In accordance with the Greater London Authority Decision Making Framework, the Chairman of the 

GLA Oversight Committee can approve urgent scrutiny expenditure on behalf of the GLA Oversight 

Committee, where there is not a meeting of the GLA Oversight Committee within the relevant 

timescale, following approval of proposed scrutiny-related expenditure at the relevant Committee 

meeting.  
 

4. Issues for Consideration  
 
4.1 At the Planning Committee on 25 April 2019, the Committee agreed in principle to the additional 

expenditure of up to £6,650 on consultancy work by Joanna Chamber MRTPI to support the work of 

the Assembly during the Examination in Public of the London Plan. This followed the originally 

allocated funds being fully utilised. The Committee recommended the proposed additional 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



        

expenditure to the GLA Oversight Committee for approval. A copy of the report to the Planning 

Committee can be found here1.  
  

4.2 As there is no GLA Oversight Committee within the relevant timescale for the required expenditure, 

the Chairman of the GLA Oversight Committee (by way of the Delegated Authority Form procedure) 

has approved the proposal on behalf of the GLA Oversight Committee.  
 

4.3 The Committee is recommended to note the action taken under delegated authority. 
 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Committee has the power to do what is recommended in the report. 

5.2 The Contracts Code enables the Executive Director of Secretariat to procure technical support. 

Under the Assembly’s decision-making framework, the Executive Director of Secretariat can award 

consultancy contracts up to £50,000. 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 The additional costs of up to £6,650 arising from the additional work will be met from the 2019/20 

scrutiny programme budget. 

6.2 The extended contract would be managed in accordance with relevant GLA policies and procedures. 

As this project is consultancy based, the requirements of the GLA’s Expenses and Benefits 

Framework and the Financial Regulations would also be adhered to. 

 

 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: 
 
 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: Member Delegated Authority Form 1060 (Additional Expenditure for support 

during the Examination in Public)  

 

Contact Officer: Jonathan Baker, Committee Officer  

Telephone: 020 7084 2825 

E-mail: Jonathan.baker@colchester.gov.uk 

 

                                                 
1
 

https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s76797/examination%20in%20public%20provision%20of%20additional%
20support.pdf 

Page 44

https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s76797/examination%20in%20public%20provision%20of%20additional%20support.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s76797/examination%20in%20public%20provision%20of%20additional%20support.pdf
https://www.london.gov.uk/moderngov/documents/s76797/examination%20in%20public%20provision%20of%20additional%20support.pdf


 

                                                                    

 
City Hall, The Queen’s Walk, London SE1 2AA 
Enquiries: 020 7983 4100 minicom: 020 7983 4458 www.london.gov.uk 

 

Subject: Work Programme for the GLA 
Oversight Committee   

 

Report to: GLA Oversight Committee    
 

Report of:  Executive Director of Secretariat 

 
Date: 15 May 2019 

This report will be considered in public 
 

 
 
1. Summary  
 
1.1 This report provides details of the proposed work for the meetings of the Committee in the 2019/20 

Assembly year. 

 

   

2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 That the Committee notes its work programme for the 2019/20 Assembly year, as set out 

in this report, and identifies any issues it wishes to consider at future meetings. 

 

 

3. Background   
 
3.1 The GLA Oversight Committee has the following overall functions: 

 Management and administration of the budget of the Assembly and Secretariat, and 

overseeing the Assembly’s scrutiny work programme; 

 Having oversight, on behalf of the London Assembly, of the Greater London Authority’s 

(GLA) corporate governance policies and activities;  

 Maintaining a watching brief in respect of the activities of the senior officers appointed by 

the Mayor; and 

 Responding to consultations from the Head of Paid Service and scrutinising the Head of Paid 

Service function. 

 

3.2 Additionally, it was agreed at the Assembly’s Annual Meeting of 11 May 2012 that the  

GLA Oversight Committee’s terms of reference include provision to scrutinise any actions or 

decisions taken by the Mayor on matters relating to education. The Committee can also scrutinise 

civil contingency arrangements in London, the provision of services to the public and the 

performance of utilities in London.  

 

 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



        

4. Issues for Consideration  
 

4.1  The main work areas of the Committee are summarised below. 

 

 Assembly Budget and Scrutiny Work Programme 

4.2  The Committee allocates the Assembly’s budget and receives a report in March each year on that 

subject (following the approval of the overall amount of the budget and in advance of the start of 

the financial year in question). 

 

4.3 The Committee receives quarterly monitoring reports from the Secretariat, scheduled for the 

Committee meetings in June, September, November and January. 

 

4.4 The Committee approves individual proposals for non-routine expenditure from the scrutiny 

programme budget which are referred to the Committee by the subject-related committees during 

the year.  The timing of these reports depends upon when the subject-related committees approve 

projects and refer proposals for expenditure. 

 

4.5  The Committee approves proposals for rapporteurships referred from subject-related committees 

during the course of the year.   

 

4.6  The Committee also has the power to consider any issue which does not fall into the remit of one of 

the subject-related committees (for instance, cross-cutting equalities and governance issues). 

 

Staffing Consultations and Appointments 

4.7 The Committee will be invited to respond to consultations from the Head of Paid Service (Chief 

Officer) from time to time during the year.  The Committee’s role in relation to these consultations is 

reactive and therefore the work programme does not predict what reports will be presented and 

when.   

 

4.8 The Assembly has a role in appointing the statutory officers to the Authority, and this Committee 

has delegated authority to fulfil that role as and when the need arises. At its meeting of 

22 May 2012, the GLA Oversight Committee agreed that the Head of Paid Service Performance 

Panel (renamed the Chief Officer Review Panel) be established as a working group, and this meets 

biannually (with the most recent meeting held 2 February 2019).  

 

Other Items of Consideration 

4.9 At its meeting on 21 March 2013, the Committee asked that it be consulted formally on the annual 

staff pay review. The Committee considered this item at its meeting of 17 July 2018. 

 

4.10 At its meeting on 25 February 2014, the Committee agreed to receive details of the progress made 

to address GLA workforce equalities issues, dealt with as part of the Committee’s regular Workforce 

Monitoring Report and update.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



        

Scrutiny of the Chief Officer Function  

4.11 The Committee usually receives reports on the following issues during the course of the year:   

 Annual Workforce Monitoring Report, incorporating complaints monitoring (plus a six-monthly 

update); and 

 Governance. 

 

4.12 The Committee also receives a report on the Draft Annual Governance Statement (last dealt with by 

the Committee at its meeting in July 2018). 

 

Meeting Dates 

4.13 The table set out below shows the Committee’s provisional meeting dates for the 2019/20 Assembly 

year and agenda items.  This timetable and agenda items are reviewed and updated as appropriate. 

 

Date of meeting 

 

Main Agenda Items (subject to agreement) 

25 June 2019  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Workforce Report 

 The Mayor’s Social Inclusion Strategy 

 Elections 2020 Preparations – update 

 Corporate Management Team Restructure  

 

16 July 2019  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 People’s Question Time 

 Secretariat Quarterly Monitoring Q1 

 

3 September 2019  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 Assembly/Secretariat Budget 2019/20 

 GLA Annual Equalities Report – Draft Assembly Contribution 

 Workforce Report 

 The GLA and GLA Group’s Workforce 

 Update on Royal Docks recruitment from meeting of  

11 December 2018 

 

16 October 2019  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 
 

21 November 2019  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 Draft Committee Timetable of Meetings 2019/20 

 Secretariat Quarterly Monitoring Report Q2  

 Individual Electoral Registration 

 

3 December 2019   Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 State of London Debate Consultation 

 Annual Staff Pay Review 

 GLA Group use of Personal Data 

 Workforce Report 

 

Page 47



        

23 January 2020  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 People’s Question Time  

 Secretariat Quarterly Monitoring Report Q3  

 Assembly’s Requirements for Information to be Included in the 

Mayor’s Annual Report 

 

26 February 2020  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 The Mayor’s Annual Equalities Report 2018/19  

 Assembly Annual Report 

 

17 March 2020  Chief Officer Consultation Reports (if any) 

 Allocation of Assembly Budget 

 

 

 

5. Legal Implications 
 

5.1 The Assembly has the power to establish committees to discharge its functions, and the GLA 

Oversight Committee is one such committee.  The work programme is in accordance with the GLA 

Oversight Committee’s terms of reference.  

 

 

6. Financial Implications 
 

6.1 There are no financial implications for the purposes of this report. 

 

 

List of appendices to this report: None 

 

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985  
List of Background Papers: None 

Contact Officer: Lorena Alcorta, Principal Committee Manager 

Telephone: 020 7983 4425 

E-mail: lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk   

 

Page 48

mailto:lorena.alcorta@london.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interests
	5 Re-Establishment of Working Groups and Panels
	6 Minutes
	7 Summary List of Actions
	07a - ESN response

	8 Secretariat Quarterly Review, Quarter 4, 2018-19
	9 Action Taken Under Delegated Authority
	11 Work Programme for the GLA Oversight Committee

